
   

 

 
99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 

New Albany Planning Commission Agenda 

Monday, May 16, 2022  7:00pm 

Members of the public must attend the meeting in-person to participate and provide comment at New 

Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main Street. The meeting will be streamed for viewing purposes only via 

the city website at https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/ 

I. Call To Order 

 

II. Roll Call 

  

III. Action of Minutes:  April 4, 2022 

   

IV. Additions or Corrections to Agenda 

Swear in All Witnesses/Applicants/Staff whom plan to speak regarding an application on 

tonight’s agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth”. 

 

V.  Hearing of Visitors for Items Not on Tonight's Agenda 

 

VII. Cases:   

 

VAR-41-2022 Variance 

Variance to Hawksmoor I-PUD zoning text section III(5)(a) to allow a swimming pool to be 

located in a side yard at 4 Hawksmoor Road (PID: 222-003482).  

Applicant: Capital City Pools, Inc. 

 

Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for - 

VAR-41-2022. 

 

Motion of approval for application VAR-41-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  

 

VAR-50-2022 Variances 

Variances to C.O. 1165.04(a)(1) and C.O. 1165.04(a)(2)(E) to allow a pool house to be 1,110 

sq.ft. in size and located approximately 15 feet from the rear lot line where code allows a 

maximum area of 800 sq. ft. based on the size of the lot and requires a 30-foot rear yard setback 

at 7230 Southfield Road (PID: 222-004784).   

Applicant: Guzzo and Garner Custom Builders  

 

Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for - 

VAR-50-2022. 

 

Motion of approval for application VAR-50-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  

 

 
VIII. Other Business 

 

https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/


   

 

 
99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

IX. Poll members for comment 

 

X. Adjournment 

 

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 1 of 23 

New Albany Planning Commission 

April 4, 2022 DRAFT Minutes 

 

Planning Commission met in regular session in the Council Chambers at Village Hall, 99 W. Main 

Street and was called to order by Planning Commission Chair Mr. Neil Kirby at 7:01 p.m.  

 

Those answering roll call: 

        Mr. Neil Kirby, Chair    Present 

Mr. David Wallace    Absent 

Mr. Hans Schell     Present 

Ms. Sarah Briggs    Present 

Mr. Bruce Larsen    Present 

Mr. Matt Shull (Council liaison)   Present 

  

Staff members present: Steven Mayer, Development Services Coordinator; Chris Christian, Planner; 

Ms. Jennifer Chrysler, Director of Community Development; Mr. Ryan Ohly, City Engineer; Benjamin 

Albrecht, Interim City Attorney; and Josie Taylor, Clerk. 

 

Moved by Mr. Schell to approve the February 23, 2022 and January 19, 2022 meeting minutes, 

seconded by Ms. Briggs. Upon roll call: Mr. Schell, yea; Ms. Briggs, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea; Mr. Kirby, 

yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there were any additions or corrections to the Agenda. 

 

Mr. Christian stated none from staff. 

 

Mr. Kirby swore all who would be speaking before the Planning Commission (hereafter, "PC) this 

evening to tell the truth and nothing but the truth. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there were any persons wishing to speak to the PC on items not on tonight's Agenda.  

 

A member of the public called out "What is on the Agenda." 

 

Mr. Kirby read the Agenda items. 

 

CU-33-2022 Conditional Use 

Conditional use to allow secondary educational uses within a site zoned Office Campus District 

(OCD) generally located south of West Campus Road and west of New Albany Road East (PIDs: 

222-004500 & 222-004533).  

Applicant: NACOT I LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq. 

 

Mr. Christian presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the applicant wished to provide comments. 

 

Mr. Aaron Underhill, Underhill & Hodge, attorney for the applicant, discussed the application 

and the reasons for the application. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if this would affect the Final Development Plan (hereafter, "FDP). 

 

Mr. Underhill stated this would not.  

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 2 of 23 

Mr. Schell stated there were about 240 students and asked what the number of students would 

be once this was eventually opened. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated he could not recall. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if this could be 1,000 students in two (2) years. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated he did not think so, noting he believed they would be in good shape. 

 

Ms. Briggs asked if the grades here would be in the middle school to high school range. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated yes, middle school to high school. 

 

Mr. Larsen asked if there were two (2) points of entry on the site. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated two (2), a student and bus drop off area. 

 

Mr. Larsen noted the side entrance currently had no sidewalk and was close to the roadway. 

 

Mr. Christian stated they could look at that at the time of the occupancy permit. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated that was a great point. 

 

Ms. Briggs stated there were two (2) entrances and there were not stop lights. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated that was correct. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if any members of the public had any comments. (No response.) 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for CU-33-2022, 

seconded by Mr. Larsen. Upon roll call: Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea; Ms. Briggs, yea; Mr. Schell, 

yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Mr. Schell to approve CU-33-2022 with the findings in the staff report and with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, seconded by Ms. Briggs. Upon roll call: Mr. Schell, yea; Ms. 

Briggs, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea; Mr. Kirby, yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Addendum Adoption—Northeast New Albany Area 

 

Mr. Mayer presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated he presumed there were no engineering comments on this. (No response.) Mr. 

Kirby asked staff to illustrate the leisure trail placements. 

 

Mr. Mayer reviewed the leisure trails shown on the presentation and identified the proposed 

future leisure trails. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if Mr. Mayer could call out certain street names in the area shown on the 

screen which would be major collectors. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated Clover Valley, Miller, and Harrison Road in the future would be major 

collector and then principle arterial roads would be a section of Green Chapel and Mink. 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 3 of 23 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if any members of the public had any comments. (No response.) 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for the Engage 

New Albany Strategic Plan Addendum, seconded by Mr. Schell. Upon roll call: Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. 

Schell, yea; Ms. Briggs, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Ms. Briggs to recommend the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Addendum for adoption 

by City Council, seconded by Mr. Larsen. Upon roll call: Ms. Briggs, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea; Mr. Schell, 

yea; Mr. Kirby, yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

ZC-27-2022 Zoning Change 

Rezoning of 1689.59+/-acres located within Licking County from Agricultural (AG) to 

Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) (PIDs: 037-111588-00.001, 037-111354-00.000, 037-

111834-00.000, 037-111846-00.000, 037-111858-00.000, 037-111852-00.000, 037-111348-00.000, 

037-112200-00.004, 037-111564-00.000, 037-111822-00.002, 037-111822-00.003, 037-111822-

00.004, 037-111822-00.000, 037-111822-01.000, 037-111816-01.000, 037-111414-00.001, 037-

112530-00.000, 037-112458-00.000, 037-112548-00.000, 037-112500-00.000, 037-112482-00.000, 

037-112194-00.000, 037-111660-01.000, 037-112452-00.000, 037-112272-00.000, 037-112350-

00.000, 037-112488-00.000, 037-111552-00.000, 037-112038-00.000, 037-111474-01.000, 037-

112398-00.000, 037-112098-00.000, 037-112098-00.001, 037-112398-00.001, 037-112164-00.000, 

037-111546-00.000, 037-111780-00.000, 037-111816-02.000, 037-112494-00.000,037-111822-00.001, 

037-112314-00.001, 037-111660-00.000, 037-112170-00.000, 037-112098-00.005, 037-112098-

00.004, 037-112098-00.002, 037-112098-00.003, 037-112308-00.000, 037-112440-00.000, 037-

112290-00.000, 037-111624-00.001, 037-111624-00.002, 037-111624-00.000, 037-112746-00.000, 

037-112356-00.000, 037-112536-00.000, 037-112314-00.000, 037-111486-00.000, 037-111480-

00.001, 037-111480-00.000, 037-111492-00.000, 037-111474-00.000, 037-111492-00.001, 037-

111486-00.001, 037-111828-00.000, 037-111978-00.000, 037-111960-00.000, 037-111966-00.000, 

037-111828-00.001, 037-111894-00.001, 037-111414-00.000, 037-111852-00.001, 037-112410-

00.000, 037-112734-00.000, 037-112260-00.000, 037-112260-00.002, 037-112260-00.001, 037-

112620-00.000, 037-111732-00.000, 037-112062-00.000, 037-112200-00.000, 037-111732-00.002, 

037-111732-00.007, 037-111732-00.001, 037-111732-00.005, 037-111732-00.004, 037-111732-

00.006, 037-111732-00.008, 037-111732-00.003, 037-111720-00.000, 037-111726-00.000, 037-

111456-00.000, 037-111588-00.000, 037-112566-00.000) 

Applicant: MBJ Holdings LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq. 

 

Mr. Mayer presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked Mr. Mayer to revisit his first comment on the setbacks, stating he believed 

they may have been flipped. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated they had been and noted the setbacks were 500 feet for building and 300 feet 

for pavement. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the setbacks exceeded the normally seen 200 foot to 250 foot setbacks 

typically seen. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated yes, they did. 

 

Mr. Ryan Ohly, City Engineer, discussed the new traffic patterns that might arise in the future 

and the modeling used to determine that.  

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 4 of 23 

Mr. Mayer stated the PC should evaluate the appropriateness of this as a whole, not just as a 

single site. 

 

Mr. Schell asked Mr. Mayer if mounding and trees would be used as needed in landscaping, 

screening, etc. 

 

Mr. Underhill, attorney for the applicant, stated he anticipated the landscaping would meet 

Code as they moved forward. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted it would be to their advantage when building in phases to install the mounding 

as construction progressed. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated absolutely. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if this development would impact the Johnstown school system. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated it would not impact or burden that school system, but would add financial 

benefits to the school district. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there was any idea regarding how many residences would fit on the 75 

parcels. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated it was in township zoning at this time as one (1) unit per five (5) acres. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted that this would be a negative effect on the school system of 75 houses as well 

as money provided for the schools. Mr. Kirby asked how many houses, by rights per township 

zoning could have been here. 

 

Mr. Larsen asked about the screening that would be used, along with the mounding. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated thirty (30) trees per each 100 linear foot were required. 

 

Mr. Larsen asked if all of the blue area shown on the screen would be part of this or was some 

of it for future use. 

 

Mr. Mayer reviewed what was currently annexed and what was future land use. 

 

Ms. Briggs asked if the trigger was for the setback and mounding requirements was from the 

right of way line. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated yes, that was correct. 

 

Ms. Briggs asked what the neon green area shown on the presentation was. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated that was property recently annexed into New Albany and noted these had 

defaulted to agricultural use. 

 

Mr. Underhill noted that would be before City Council next month. 

 

Ms. Briggs asked what the red square shown on the presentation was. 

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 5 of 23 

Mr. Mayer stated that was property currently outside the re-zoning area and was excluded from 

the re-zoning. 

 

Ms. Briggs stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if any members of the public had comments to provide.  

 

Mr. Damon Falcone, 105 Aruba Avenue, stated different mounding levels had been mentioned 

and asked how far from the property lines and TMD lines mounding should begin. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated mounding would be triggered when building occurs within 800 feet of the 

property line and within 100 feet of a sidewalk. 

 

Mr. Falcone asked if that would affect drainage on the lot. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted that drainage on the lots could not be changed, neither increased nor decreased 

from the water or drainage currently there. Mr. Kirby indicated the developer could also 

respond to this issue. 

 

Mr. Tom Rubey, New Albany Company, stated the setback number of 100 feet was a minimum 

number and setback's could always be greater than that. Mr. Rubey noted that drainage was not 

to be changed and they would look at a mixture of mounding, trees, landscaping, etc. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted residents could work with the developer on the look and development of 

mounding, screening, etc. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated absolutely. 

 

Mr. Falcone asked if the 100 foot setback, where there were 34, 40, or 46 foot wide lots that  

were open and flat, could be increased to a 200 foot setback. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated Code stated that was the minimum but noted he could see if the developer 

could be flexible and they could talk about it. 

 

Mr. Falcone stated he was also concerned about the effects on the groundwater due to 

construction and then manufacturing as he had a well. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated Mr. Falcone could obtain a report on the water quality as well as flow prior to 

the start of construction and, in that way, this could be compared in case any changes occurred. 

 

Mr. Falcone stated the water now was in an agriculturally zoned area. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted that could also be measured to see what was there now. 

 

Mr. Falcone stated that was all he had. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Chris Anderson, 12030 Jug Street, asked how long it would be before he would need to 

move out. Mr. Anderson stated that there was a warehouse across the way from him and now 

there was manufacturing at his backyard and a new road with multiple lanes was being added. 

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 6 of 23 

Mr. Kirby noted the judgment call was Mr. Anderson's and said Intel construction could begin 

this summer. 

 

Mr. Anderson stated they were waiting to see when the new roadways would be approved and 

started. Mr. Anderson said this could no longer be their forever home. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked staff about the improvements. 

 

Mr. Ohly stated that three (3) lanes of traffic would currently fit in the existing sixty (60) foot 

right of way. Mr. Ohly noted that Mr. Anderson's section of the road could be done in 

approximately the first quarter of 2023 or so. 

 

Mr. Anderson asked when the first area would be annexed in and how long would it take for 

future development in that area. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated that it was up to property owners when to have their land re-zoned or annexed 

and there was no timeline. 

 

Mr. Anderson asked if there was a timeline. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated no. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted these were not emminent domain actions, it was up to the landowners. 

 

Mr. Anderson stated he understood that, but not knowing was a bad position to be in and his 

property value was decreasing. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked  Mr. Anderson if he had spoken with a realtor. 

 

Mr. Anderson stated he had, he could not find what he already had at the right price. 

 

Mr. Schell said Mr. Anderson could keep in touch with staff to find out when things would 

occur and what areas would be next. 

 

Ms. Jennifer Waldren, 12190 Jug Street, stated she was next door to Mr. Anderson, and asked 

why certain areas shown on the map were cut out. 

 

Ms. Jennifer Chrysler, Director of Community Development, stated the cut out areas 

represented pending applications from the owners for annexation. 

 

Ms. Waldren asked if that was because MJB Holdings and others had purchased all of those 

properties. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated she did not know if they had purchased all of those properties. 

 

Ms. Waldren said she was in the area that was not to be re-zoned and asked what the timeline 

needed for that to occur would be. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated residents could work with their neighbors so that all could benefit from any 

sales or re-zoning opportunities. 

 

Ms. Waldren stated she was working with a realtor now. 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 7 of 23 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated there was one realtor working on a sale of some properties on the south 

side of Jug Street at this time.  

 

Ms. Waldren asked if this meant she should go with her neighbors. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated it would depend on the options available to Ms. Waldren based on whether 

she was seeking to only sell her lot or to sell hers and others' lots for development. 

 

Ms. Waldren stated she too would have liked to have a timeline. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated Ms. Waldren could reach out to her neighbors before anyone was 

approached about their property and get together if they wished. 

 

Ms. Waldren stated a lot of her neighbors indicated they had been approached. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated there was a group there working together. 

 

Ms. Waldren asked if a minimum amount of land was needed. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated she did not know but there was opportunity there. 

 

Ms. Waldren stated they would not be putting in fifty (50) year old trees for screening and she 

wanted to know when to get off the train. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated Ms. Waldren could check in with both neighbors and staff. 

 

Ms. Waldren stated the developers were not public works. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated true, but she could work with neighbors and together their frontage and 

acreage could increase values 

 

Ms. Waldren stated she would need to figure out her next steps. 

 

Mr. Kirby said he had experienced the same situation in 2006. 

 

Mr. Matt McQuaid, One Columbus, stated this application for re-zoning would be a great 

addition to the community and the state. Mr. McQuaid stated this would bring good jobs and 

increase economic growth in the area and the state. 

 

Mr. Scott Driscoll, 156 Bermuda Drive, stated he was concerned about issues with water and 

the setbacks. Mr. Driscoll stated manufacturing added an additional risk to the water quality 

and supply on his land. Mr. Driscoll asked if City water and sewage would be an available 

option for his neighborhood. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked staff if the City could provide water and sewage in that area. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated that in the Bermuda subdivision they could do that. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked how close they were to be able to accomplish that. 

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 8 of 23 

Mr. Mayer stated they did not have those specific at this time, but noted they would need to 

annex the properties into the City of New Albany first to be serviced. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated it would be good to know how close the sewer line was to the neighborhood 

and how close the sewer line was to the foundation line to see if property owners could require 

they be connected. 

 

Mr. Driscoll stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated Mr. Driscoll should get with his neighbors on that. 

 

Mr. Driscoll asked if any water issues were later determined he should sue his neighbors. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated no, he would go to the developers in that case. 

 

Mr. Driscoll stated the setback was 100 feet by default and asked if that could be increased due 

to the noise inherent in manufacturing activities. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated that was a matter for City Council. 

 

Mr. Driscoll asked if there were other opportunities to voice concerns. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated this would go from the PC to City Council. 

 

Mr. Driscoll stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there were other members of the public. 

 

Mr. Jeremy Osterhouse, 4366 Main Street, stated he now lived on what in the future was likely 

to be a five (5) lane road and wanted to know when the widening would occur. Mr. Osterhouse 

asked how much of his property would be taken. 

 

Mr. Ohly stated this was a moving target at this time and they were just surveying now. Mr. 

Ohly stated in general this street had a sixty (60) foot right-of-way and they would need a 100 

foot right-of-way. Mr. Ohly noted the road might also shift or curve and they would need to 

look at each property specifically. Mr. Ohly stated he would be happy to work with Mr. 

Osterhouse to look over how his land might be affected. 

 

Mr. Osterhouse asked if a walking trail would be included. 

 

Mr. Ohly stated yes. 

 

Mr. Osterhouse asked if more planning would be occurring on the east side of the area. 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated that was very possible. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the EPA and Columbus service lines could be described again.  

 

Mr. Ohly stated that right now it was limited up near Jug Street and the Columbus service 

boundary line was about just to where the Intel site was. 

 

Mr. Kirby said he was more worried about the EPA line and asked where the EPA line was. 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 9 of 23 

 

Ms. Chrysler stated the boundary line for the City's service area was north of Mink Road and to 

the east. 

 

Mr. Osterhouse stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated thank you all. 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for ZC-27-2022, 

seconded by Mr. Larsen. Upon roll call: Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea; Ms. Briggs, yea; Mr. Schell, 

yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Mr. Schell to approve ZC-27-2022 with the findings in the staff report and with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, seconded by Ms. Briggs. Upon roll call: Mr. Schell, yea; Ms. 

Briggs, yea; Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Larsen, yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Mayer stated there were brochures in the lobby regarding this matter and residents could 

also check on the City's website for new information and for contact details. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted Mr. Rubey and Mr. Underhill were also available at this time for discussion. 

 

Poll Members for Comment 

 

None. 

 

Mr. Kirby adjourned the meeting at 8:23 p.m. 

 

Submitted by Josie Taylor.  

  



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 10 of 23 

  APPENDIX 
 

 

  

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

April 4, 2022 Meeting 

 

 
CORNERSTONE  

CONDITIONAL USE 

 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located south of West Campus Road and west of New Albany Road 

East (PIDs: 222-004500 and 222-004533) 

APPLICANT:   NACOT I LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  

REQUEST: Conditional Use 

ZONING:   Office Campus District (OCD) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center  

APPLICATION: CU-33-2022 

 

Review based on: Application materials received March 4 and 25, 2022. 

Staff report prepared by Chris Christian, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests approval of a conditional use to allow secondary school uses on a 7.283 +/- 

developed property that is zoned Office Campus District (OCD).  

 

On February 7, 2022, the Planning Commission reviewed and recommended adoption to city council to 

add secondary school uses as a conditional use in the following zoning districts: Office (O), Office 

Campus District (OCD) and General Employment (GE). City council adopted these code changes on 

March 1, 2022 (O-3-2022).  

 

The applicant states that Cornerstone Academy will operate the secondary school on the site on an 

interim basis as they fundraise and construct a new school facility directly east of this site at the 

intersection of State Route 605 and New Albany Road East. On November 15, 2022, the Planning 

Commission reviewed and recommended approval of the Cornerstone Academy I-PUD Zoning District 

for the permanent school site which was adopted by city council (ZC-105-2021 and O-45-2021).   

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 7.283+/- acre site is located in the Franklin County portion of the New Albany Business Park. The 

site contains a 50,461+/- sq. ft. commercial office building that was built in 2012 and is currently 

vacant. There is also a surface parking lot on both sites that provides a total of 498 parking spaces for 

the building.   

 

III. EVALUATION 

The general standards for Conditional Uses are contained in Codified Ordinance Section 1115.03. The 

Planning Commission shall not approve a conditional use unless it shall in each specific case, make 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 11 of 23 

specific findings of fact directly based on the particular evidence presented to it, that support 

conclusions that such use at the proposed location meets all of the following requirements: 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, or 

with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

▪ The applicant proposes to allow a secondary school use on a 7.283+/- acre commercially 

zoned property within an existing 50,461 sq.ft office building that is currently vacant. The 

site is zoned Office Campus District (OCD). The applicant states that there will roughly 

240+/- students in 18 classrooms with 25 teachers in the building.  

▪ On February 7, 2022, the Planning Commission reviewed and recommended adoption to 

City Council to add secondary school uses as a conditional use within the Office (O), Office 

Campus District (OCD) and General Employment (GE) zoning districts and City Council 

adopted these changes (O-3-2022).  

▪ Prior to the code changes being adopted, secondary schools, which are considered an 

educational/institutional use were not a specific land use category identified in the strategic 

plan. As such, these types of uses were intended to be integrated throughout the community. 

By adding these types of uses in commercial zoning districts such as this site, it allows 

diversification within the business park, encourages links between education and workforce 

development and in this case adds commercial income tax base.  

▪ It does not appear that the proposed use will alter the character of the surrounding area. The 

site is located on the western edge of New Albany and all surrounding land uses within the 

city are commercial. Some of these users include Aetna to the north, the New Albany 

Signature Office Buildings to the south, as well as Discover and American Regent to the 

east. To the west, within Columbus, there are multi-family and single family attached 

residential properties. The property is zoned for office uses and contains a large office 

building that is currently vacant.  

▪ C.O. 1167.05(C)(2) states that 3 parking spaces are required for each classroom in the 

building or one parking space for every 5 seats in the main auditorium, whichever is greater. 

The applicant states that there will not be an auditorium in the building but there are 18 

classrooms therefore 54 parking spaces are required to be provided. The applicant is far 

exceeding this requirement as there are 498 existing parking spaces available for use.  

 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the general 

vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same area. 

▪ The proposed use is harmonious with the existing and intended character for the general 

vicinity and will not change the essential character of the area as the use is located within 

an existing building. 

▪ The proposed use is appropriate due to its proximity to the State Route 161 interchange, the 

New Albany Business Park and nearby residential uses where a school is typically located.  

 

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 

▪ The proposed secondary school use will be permitted in an existing, vacant office building. 

There are no proposed changes to the building’s exterior and/or site. The applicant states 

that the impact of this use will be positive in that it will serve to lessen P.M. peak traffic 

impacts when compared to other permitted uses for the site. 

 

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as highways, 

streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewers, and 

schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use 

shall be able to provide adequately any such services. 

▪ Since this is an existing site/building, it is already being adequately served by essential 

public services.  



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 12 of 23 

 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

▪ The proposed use will improve economic welfare in the city due to creation of jobs which 

generate income taxes in a building that is currently vacant and thus generating no income 

tax revenue.  

 

(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare 

by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

▪ The applicant states that the proposed use will not involve any of the above uses as it 

operates a traditional school.  

 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference with 

traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

▪ A site circulation plan was submitted as part of the application that shows circulation for bus 

and car traffic on the site. The city traffic engineer states that overall, the proposed use is 

appropriate for this site from a traffic perspective and provided comments to the applicant 

on the site circulation exhibit. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the final site 

circulation plan is subject to the review and approval of the city traffic engineer and must be 

approved prior to the issuance of a change of occupancy permit.   

▪ The site is accessible by three existing curb cuts, one along West Campus Road and two off 

of Nacot Place. The existing building was previously occupied with a commercial office use, 

iQor with 1,560 employees at its peak. The proposed number of students for the school is 

240, which is far below the total number of office employees that used to be on the site. 

Additionally, there are 498 parking spaces on the site and only 54 spaces are required to be 

provided per the city parking code for this use. This additional space within the parking lot 

may be used to provide stacking/queueing for drop off and pick up lanes. For these reasons 

it does not appear that any additional traffic will be generated as a result of this use 

compared to what can be generated by the existing permitted uses.  

 

III. RECOMMENDATION 

The overall proposal is consistent with the code requirements for conditional uses for secondary 

schools. The proposed use is appropriate for the site based on the current zoning and its location within 

the New Albany Business Park. Educational uses, which are a type of institutional use, are not a 

specific future land use district in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. As such, these types of uses 

are intended to be integrated throughout the community which is why they were added as a conditional 

use within the Office (O), Office Campus District (OCD) and General Employment (GE) zoning 

districts by the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 

The conditional use was added so that the Planning Commission could evaluate its appropriateness 

within the business park at the time they are requested. The site is zoned to allow, and has been 

occupied by, commercial office uses which typically generate a large number of daytime employees. 

The anticipated number of students and staff combined will result in approximately 300 daily site users 

which is far less than the 1,560 people that worked on site historically for iQor. The applicant submitted 

a site circulation exhibit which has been reviewed by the city traffic engineer who states that the 

proposed use for the site is appropriate from a traffic generation perspective while retaining the ability 

to adjust the exhibit as needed prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. Additionally, there is 

ample, existing parking space on the site that will allow for additional queueing/stacking for drop 

off/pick up lanes.  

 

Staff recommends approval provided that the Planning Commission finds the proposal meets sufficient 

basis for approval.    



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 13 of 23 

 

IV. ACTION 

The Commission shall approve, approve with supplementary conditions, or disapprove the application 

as presented.  If the application is approved with supplementary conditions, the Planning Commission 

shall direct staff to issue a zoning permit listing the specific conditions listed by the Planning 

Commission for approval. 

 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:  

 

Move to approve application CU-33-2022 with the following conditions: 

 

1. The final site circulation plan is subject to the review and approval of the city traffic engineer and 

must be approved prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit.   

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: Google Earth 

 

  



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 14 of 23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Commission  

From: Community Development Department  

Re: Draft Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Addendum 

Date: April 4, 2022 

 

 

  

We are pleased to present the final draft of the Engage New Albany strategic plan Northeast 

New Albany addendum for your review. At the April 4th Planning Commission meeting city 

staff is seeking the board’s official endorsement of the plan and recommendation of adoption 

to city council.  

 

Since the adoption of the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan, additional agreements with the 

City of Columbus have extended New Albany’s centralized water and sanitary sewer service 

areas to the north and east. The purpose of this area plan is to responsibly plan for the future of 

the Northeast New Albany expansion area and its future incorporation into the city. This 

expansion area represents approximately 2,737 acres of land, which is currently located within 

Jersey Township and also sits entirely in Licking County.  

 

The Northeast New Albany Area Plan serves as an addendum to the Engage New Albany 

Strategic Plan. The recommendations presented in this document are the same or build upon 

the recommendations in the Strategic Plan. Similar to previous addendums, the Northeast New 

Albany Area Plan covers primarily covers land uses and mobility.  

 

The plan’s overall adoption schedule is as follows.  

 

Planning Commission Adoption   April 4th   

City Council Adoption    April 19th   

 

 

Please reach out to Stephen Mayer with any questions ahead of the meeting.  

 

  



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 15 of 23 

 

 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

April 4, 2022 Meeting 

 

 

TECHNOLOGY MANUFACTURING DISTRICT (TMD) 

ZONING AMENDMENT 

 

 

LOCATION:  1689+/- acre site within Licking County and generally located south of Green 

Chapel Road, west of Mink Street and north of Jug Street. See Appendix A for 

list of county parcel identification numbers.  

APPLICANT:   MBJ Holdings LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  

REQUEST: Zoning Amendment  

ZONING:   Agricultural (AG) to Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Employment Center 

APPLICATION: ZC-27-2022 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on March 4, 14, 18, and 22, 2022. 

Staff report completed by Stephen Mayer, Planning Manager 

 

V. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests review and recommendation to city council to rezone 1,689+/- acres from 

Agricultural (AG) to Technology Manufacturing District (TMD). The rezoning area encompasses 75 

properties located within the Licking County portion of the New Albany International Business Park.  

 

The proposed zoning district meets the recommended development standards found in the Engage New 

Albany strategic plan addendum Employment Center land use and the Western Licking County Accord 

Office/Warehouse land use category by providing compatible general employment uses. The TMD 

retains or improves upon many of the requirements found in adjacent existing zoning texts. 

 

C.O. 1111.02 (Amendments) allows a change in zoning to be initiated by motion of Council, or by 

motion of the Planning Commission. In accordance with C.O. 1111 neighbors within 200 feet of the 

subject property have been notified and rezoning signs have been installed on every property included 

in this application.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The overall site consists of 75 parcels and is located within Licking County. The site is comprised of 

farm fields and residential homes. The site is generally located south of Green Chapel Road, west of 

Mink Street and north of Jug Street. These parcels are currently being annexed into the city. The 

annexation petition was submitted on February 11, 2022 and is scheduled for its first reading at city 

council on April 19, 2022 and second reading on May 3, 2022. The neighboring uses and zoning 

districts include L-GE and unincorporated agricultural and residential. 

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Planning Commission’s review authority of the zoning amendment application is found under C.O. 

1107.02. Upon review of the proposed amendment to the zoning map, the Commission is to make 

recommendation to city council. Staff’s review is based on city plans and studies, proposed zoning 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 16 of 23 

district, and the codified ordinances. Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with 

needed action or recommended action in underlined text.  

 

Per codified ordinance chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission shall 

consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 

(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 

(c) Access, traffic flow. 

(d) Adjacent zoning. 

(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 

(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 

(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 

(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

 

A. New Albany Strategic Plan  

The Engage New Albany strategic plan lists the following development standards for the Employment 

Center future land use district: 

1. No freeway / pole signs are allowed.  

2. Heavy landscaping is necessary to buffer these uses from adjacent residential areas.  

3. Plan office buildings within context of the area, not just the site, including building heights 

within development parcels. 

4. Sites with multiple buildings should be well organized and clustered if possible. 

5. All office developments are encouraged to employ shared parking or be designed to 

accommodate it. 

6. All office developments should plan for regional stormwater management. 

7. All associated mechanical operations should be concealed from the public right-of-way and 

screened architecturally or with landscape in an appealing manner. 

8. Any periphery security should integrate with the existing landscape and maintain and enhance 

the character of road corridor. 

9. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements are encouraged. 

10. The use of materials, colors, and texture to break up large-scale facades is required. 

 

B. Western Licking County Accord 

The zoning district is located within the Western Licking County Accord’s Office/Warehouse, Office 

Campus/Transitional Agriculture, and Rural Residential/Agricultural future land use districts. The 

Western Licking County Accord states that if New Albany annexes land in this area and is able to 

provide water and sewer services, it would best serve the city of New Albany and Johnstown-Monroe 

School District as office development in the annexed area.  

 

The accord’s land use map is a point in time until any given area begins to develop or change. The 

proposed zoning meets the WLCA objectives. The TMD advances the employment center opportunities 

and protects rural corridors through large setbacks and the design guideline’s landscaping and 

mounding requirements. The Accord’s recommended development standards for the Office District 

include, but are not limited to: 

1. Building should be oriented to the front of the primary public roadways. (pg. 68) 

2. Office buildings should be set back from the primary street right-of-way a minimum of 50 feet 

to maintain a natural greenway as a visual amenity. (pg. 68) 

3. Street trees should be provided on both sides of the street at a minimum of 40 feet on center. 

(pg. 68) 

4. Where new development is adjacent to existing residences a buffer zone shall be created with a 

minimum width of 25 feet. Such screening within the buffer zone shall consist of natural 

vegetation planted no closer than 3 feet to any property line. Natural vegetation shall have an 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 17 of 23 

opaqueness of 75% during full foliage and shall consist of a variety of deciduous and evergreen 

trees which attain 10 feet in height within 5 years of planting. (pg. 65) 

5. Reasonable and good faith efforts shall be made to preserve existing trees and tree rows 

occurring in the planning area. (pg. 64) 

6. To avoid spill-over lighting from commercial development to residential development. (pg. 66) 

7. To avoid light pollution of the night sky. (pg. 66) 

8. Outdoor light pole fixtures shall not exceed thirty (30) feet. (pg. 66) 

 

C. Use, Site, and Layout 
1. The permitted uses include those allowed in the LI (Limited Industrial) District as well as 

park-and-ride facilities, off-site parking and parking structures, bulk storage tanks, essential 

services, water and wastewater treatment facilities, gas storage, electric switch yards like 

(sub-stations), concrete batch plants, solar panels, and truck cell phone lots.  

2. With the exception of parking structures and gas storage, all of these uses currently exist 

within the business park.  

3. The chapter identifies two types of developments: flagship and primary projects.  

o A flagship project must be a minimum of 500 acres for a single project.  

o Primary projects are intended to be the same scale and size as the existing 

manufacturing and distribution centers in the city.  

o Given that flagship projects will only be located on large sites with the large setbacks 

and enhanced mounding requirements, the code provides flexibility for parking, 

signage, and architecture. 

4. The site is located in the Engage New Albany strategic plan’s Employment Center land use 

district. This site is also located in the Western Licking County Accord’s Office/Warehouse, 

Office Campus/Transitional Agriculture, and Rural Residential/Agricultural districts.  

5. Due to the proximity of this site to the State Route 161/Beech Road and State Route 

161/Mink Street interchanges and its location adjacent to commercially zoned land in the 

existing New Albany business park to the south, the site appears to be most appropriate for 

commercial development.    

6. The TMD zoning district establishes more restrictive setback requirements than the 

development standards from surrounding L-GE limitation texts in the immediate vicinity.   

o Principal Arterial Street Setbacks & Mounding 

▪ The TMD contains a tiered setback requirement for principal arterial streets.  The 

zoning allows for a reduction in the building and pavement setbacks if the heights of 

mounding are increased. These regulations are found in codified ordinance chapter 

1154.07(d)(1).  

▪ Minimum 300 feet for pavement and 500 feet for buildings with a mound that is a 

minimum of 6 feet and a maximum of 8 feet in height within the required minimum 

pavement setback. 

▪ Minimum 200 feet pavement setback and 400 building setback with a mound that is a 

minimum of 10 feet in height and a maximum of 12 feet in height within the required 

minimum pavement setback. 

▪ Minimum 100 feet pavement setback and 300 building setback with a mound that is a 

minimum of 13 feet and a maximum of 15 feet in height within the required 

minimum pavement setback. 

▪ Accessory structures such as security facilities, gate houses, security checkpoints, 

solar panels, bus and shuttle transit stops, and related improvements may be located 

as close as 100 feet of the rights-of-way and can be located in front or behind the 

required mounding. 

o Major Collector Setbacks 

▪ Minimum 25 feet pavement and 50 feet building setbacks. These regulations are 

found in codified ordinance chapter 1154.07(d)(2). 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 18 of 23 

o Residential Buffering & Setback Requirements 

▪ Minimum 100 foot building and pavement setback from any district where residences 

are a permitted use. If a building will exceed 65 feet in height, the minimum required 

building setback is increased to 300 feet.  These regulations are found in codified 

ordinance chapter 1154.07(f). 

▪ When a residential property is not adjacent to a Principal Arterial street, a minimum 

ten (10)-foot high mound is required to be installed along the property line.  

▪ In areas where existing tree stands or forested areas are present, the city Landscape 

Architect shall not require such mounding and landscaping where the height and 

opacity requirements can be met by preserving and/or supplementing the tree stands 

or forested areas. 

o The TMD zoning allows for outdoor storage of materials, equipment, and supplies.  

Outdoor storage areas for these items are not required to be screened if they are located 

so that they are not visible from a public street right-of-way or from ground level at a 

distance of 200 feet from any perimeter boundary line. Otherwise, such outdoor storage 

areas shall be fully screened to a height of 8 feet. Outdoor storage areas (whether 

screened or unscreened) shall comply with minimum setback requirements for pavement.   

 

D. Mobility and Parking  

1. The city of New Albany hired a traffic engineer, Carpenter Marty, to complete a traffic study 

for the Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) rezoning.  The traffic patterns are expected 

to change as a result of the new land use and this report provides an in-depth analysis of the 

expected traffic.  The study assumes a full build out of the TMD and provides a basis for 

infrastructure planning within this area, which includes roadway cross section 

recommendations.  The study utilizes the city of New Albany’s thoroughfare plan component 

within the strategic plan. The thoroughfare plan is developed in partnership with the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) and is designed to a 30-year horizon.  Carpenter 

Marty and city staff used this base data and worked with the Ohio Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) to perform the area traffic modeling with projected growth rates for 

final land use buildout for the entire business park.  The traffic study recommendations for the 

TMD are consistent with the Engage New Albany strategic plan addendum’s mobility chapter.  

2. Chapter 1154.08 (k) requires the developer to dedicate the following right-of-way below. These 

dedication requirements match the recommendations found in the Engage New Albany 

strategic plan.  

a. Principal Arterial Streets: Minimum of 100 feet of right-of-way. That may be reduced to a 

minimum of 80 feet if approved by the city engineer.     

b. Major Collector Streets: Minimum of 100 feet of right-of-way. That may be reduced to a 

minimum of 80 feet if approved by the city engineer.     

c. Other Public Streets: minimum of 60 feet of right-of-way.  

d. City code requires the property owner to grant easements to the city which are adjacent to 

the rights-of-way to the minimum extent necessary to provide for the installation and 

maintenance of streetscape improvements and/or utilities. 

3. Flagship projects do not have any requirement to provide a minimum or maximum amount of 

vehicular parking spaces or loading spaces. Drive aisles, parking space, and loading space 

quantity and dimensions shall conform to the standards set forth in the New Albany 

Technology Manufacturing District Landscape and Architecture Standards Plan found in figure 

17B. 

4. Primary projects shall conform to the standards set forth in Chapter 1167 (city parking code). 

 

E. Architectural Standards 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 19 of 23 

1. The TMD C.O. 1154.13 includes many of the same or improved architectural standards and 

requirements established from the General Employment limitation texts recently approved by 

the Planning Commission and city council in the surrounding business park. 

2. C.O. 1154.13 (b) contains general regulations that apply to all primary projects. There are 

additional standards for non-office building developments such as manufacturing and 

warehouses facilities. These standards ensure all buildings and their exterior elevations are 

designed to be compatible with each other and to reflect a consistent design approach that 

match the rest of the New Albany business park. 

3. Primary projects are required to provide complete screening of all roof-mounted equipment on 

all four sides of buildings with materials that are consistent and harmonious with the building’s 

façade and character. This must screen equipment from off-site view and to buffer sound 

generated by such equipment. Solar energy systems are excluded from the requirements of this 

section. 

4. Architectural requirements for flagship projects are located in the TMD Landscape Design 

Standards plan in Figure 20. Flagship projects are required to employ a comparable use of 

materials on all elevations. Façade colors are required to be coordinated and complement each 

other.  

5. Flagship project’s architectural designs for all portions of a building or structure that are visible 

from a public right-of-way (excluding public rights-of-way who primary purpose is to 

accommodate truck traffic or service loading areas) are required to meet the community 

standard in terms of quality while taking into account the unique nature of the use(s) of the 

structures.  

6. Consistent with the city’s Limited Employment (LI) and General Employment (GE) districts, 

the TMD does not have a height limitation for buildings.  

 

F. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. The Technology Manufacturing District includes a landscape design standard plan.  This plan is 

an extension of the TMD and is intended supplement and expand on the regulations found in 

codified ordinance 1154. This is the first and only zoning district to include a landscape design 

standard plan as a zoning requirement. The design standards plan includes street trees, 

mounding, stormwater basins, parking lot screening. This ensures the creation of a district 

greenway network with appropriately scaled and designed setbacks, mounding, and 

landscaping. The regulations are intended to preserve and refine the rural character of the 

district along the roadway corridors.  

2. There is a maximum impervious parcel coverage of 85% on parcels containing flagship projects 

and 75% on parcels containing Primary projects. Primary projects have to follow the same 

enhanced landscape screening and mounding requirements as flagship project.  

3. C.O. 1154.08 contains the residential buffering and setback requirements: 

a. When a residential property is not adjacent to a Principal Arterial street, a minimum ten 

(10)-foot high mound is required to be installed along the property line. The mound shall 

consist of a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreens and bushes to provide an opacity of 

75% on the date that is 5 years after planting to a total height of fourteen (14) feet above 

the top of the mound.  

b. The mounding and landscape plan for these areas must be reviewed and approved by the 

city Landscape Architect.   

c. In areas where existing tree stands or forested areas are present, the city Landscape 

Architect shall not require such mounding and landscaping where the height and opacity 

requirements can be met by preserving and/or supplementing the tree stands or forested 

areas. 

4. Along the principle arterial streets, such as Mink Street and Green Chapel Road, the 

mounding is required to be landscaped in natural pattern. Figure 6 of the plan states trees 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 20 of 23 

should be planted on the front (street side) and top of the mound at a rate of 30 trees per 100 

linear feet. Trees must be underplanted with native woodland shrubs in massing.  

5. Development must comply with the provisions of Chapter 1155 (city floodplain ordinance) 

unless otherwise provided within the TMD. The TMD requires that all streams with a drainage 

area greater than fifty (50) acres and their riparian corridors shall be preserved. The corridor’s 

setback width is a minimum of one hundred (100) feet, with at least twenty-five (25) feet on 

each side of the centerline of the stream. No pavement, structures, or other impermeable 

surfaces or improvements are permitted in riparian corridors, except for paved leisure trails, 

benches, and bridges. New vegetation is also allowed to be planted within these corridors. 

6. The TMD requires that trees within wetlands are preserved through Tree Preservation Zones. 

These zones are established within areas that will be preserved pursuant to applicable federal 

and state permits and determinations once they are approved and issued by the Ohio EPA and 

the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. These Tree Preservation Zones shall be maintained, 

protected, and preserved in accordance with such permits. If allowed under applicable permits, 

trees within Tree Preservation Zones may be removed if they present a potential danger to 

persons or property. Tree Preservation Zones do not include those areas where trees and/or 

wetland areas are allowed to be removed or filled by relevant permits. The final boundaries of 

the Tree Preservation Zones will be the same as the boundaries of the portions of the site that 

will be required to be preserved under applicable federal and state permits, as may be amended 

from time-to-time.   

7. The required mounding and landscaping must be installed along the entirety of public street 

frontages and residential property lines abutting the TMD concurrent with building construction 

unless construction of multiple buildings is phased, in which case required mounding and 

landscaping may be installed in phases.   

 

 
 

8. For each phase of development in the TMD, such required mounding and landscaping shall be 

installed when it is anticipated (as provided in plans associated with relevant permits) that 

buildings, paved parking areas, or above-ground equipment or utility infrastructure, once 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 21 of 23 

constructed within that phase, will be located within 800 feet of the relevant perimeter 

boundary line (e.g. street or residential property).    

9. Parking lots are required to be screened from public streets by a wall, mound, or minimum 3.5-

foot-tall evergreen hedge or similar landscaping.  

  

G. Lighting & Signage 

1. No light spillage onto properties which are adjacent to property which is zoned in the TMD 

classification shall be permitted from lighting sources within the TMD per codified ordinance 

1154.16(e).  

2. Codified ordinance 1154.16 (a) requires all parking lot and private drive lighting shall be cut-

off type fixtures and down cast and be from a controlled source in order to minimize light 

spilling beyond the boundaries of the site.  

3. Light poles shall not exceed 30 feet in height, except that light poles located within 300 feet of 

properties where residential uses exist or are permitted shall be no more than 18 feet in height 

per codified ordinance 1154.16(a). 

4. Figure 14 of the landscape design standards plan contains signage requirements for street 

entrances to ensure consistency through the district and the surrounding business park. All 

other signage shall conform to the standards set forth in Chapter 1169 of the codified 

ordinances of the city of New Albany.  

 

H. Other Considerations 
1. The applicant has submitted a school impact statement which states the proposed TMD zoning 

will result in fewer children in the Johnstown Monroe Local School District and add significant 

value to the land resulting in a substantial financial benefit to the school district.  

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The city Engineer has no additional comments on the proposed rezoning.  

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

Basis for Approval: 

 

The TMD takes the best practices from surrounding commercial areas and amplifies them. The TMD 

incorporates the best practices from the existing limitation texts and developments within the New 

Albany International Business Park and codifies those best practices. Moreover, it requires many of the 

larger “enhanced” setbacks, screening and mounding requirements recently approved within the Jug 

Street North Limitation text established from resident feedback at the Planning Commission and city 

council meetings.  

 

The proposal matches the land use recommendations found in the Engage New Albany strategic plan 

addendum. The proposed zoning text meets the development standards found in both the Western 

Licking County Accord Plan and the Engage New Albany strategic plan. The requirements of the TMD 

zoning and landscape design standards plan take into account the existing residential nature of the 

surrounding area by requiring larger setbacks, mounding and landscape restrictions to remain sensitive 

to those existing uses. The TMD advances the employment center opportunities and protects rural 

corridors through large setbacks and the design guideline’s landscaping and mounding requirements as 

recommended in the WLCA.  

 

Staff recommends approval provided that the Planning Commission finds the proposal meets sufficient 

basis for approval. 

 



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 22 of 23 

The Planning Commission is to evaluate the appropriateness of this “straight” zoning district to the site. 

Per codified ordinance chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission shall 

consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 

• The large scale of the rezoning will result in a more comprehensive planned 

redevelopment of the area and will ensure compatibility between uses.  

(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 

• The TMD includes heightened level of standards based on iterations of limitations texts 

from past zonings over the years.   

(c) Access, traffic flow. 

• The city of New Albany hired a traffic engineer, Carpenter Marty, to complete a traffic 

study for the Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) rezoning. The traffic study’s 

recommendations for roadway improvements are consistent with the strategic plan’s 

functional classification and can appropriately serve the zoning district.  

(d) Adjacent zoning. 

• The property is adjacent to commercially zoned property along portions of its southern 

and western boundaries.  The remainder of the southern and western boundary’s 

existing land uses are agricultural or residential, however, the Engage New Albany 

strategic plan recommends future Employment Center uses.  

(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 

• The applicant has submitted a complete and correct application for this zoning 

amendment. 

(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 

• The overall effect of the development advances and benefits the general welfare of the 

community. 

• The TMD ensures consistency and simplifies regulations that are favorable to the 

surrounding area.  

• Since this chapter permits the same uses established in the business park today plus 

some more industrial uses, it requires enhanced setbacks and mounding requirements 

compared to surrounding commercial zoning regulations.  

(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 

• Due to the proximity of this site to the State Route 161/Beech Road and State Route 

161/Mink Street interchanges, and its location adjacent to commercially zoned land in 

the existing New Albany business park to the south, the site appears to be most 

appropriate for commercial development. 

(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

• The proposed rezoning will allow for the development of businesses that will generate 

revenue for the school district while eliminating residential units having a positive 

impact on the school district. 

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for ZC-27-2022:  

 

Move to recommend approval of the rezoning application ZC-27-2022 to city council.  

 

  



 

22 0404 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 23 of 23 

Approximate Site Location: 

–––  

 Source: Google Earth and city staff 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: List of county parcel identification numbers for subject properties 

 

PIDs: 037-111588-00.001, 037-111354-00.000, 037-111834-00.000, 037-111846-00.000, 037-111858-

00.000, 037-111852-00.000, 037-111348-00.000, 037-112200-00.004, 037-111564-00.000, 037-

111822-00.002, 037-111822-00.003, 037-111822-00.004, 037-111822-00.000, 037-111822-01.000, 

037-111816-01.000, 037-111414-00.001, 037-112530-00.000, 037-112458-00.000, 037-112548-

00.000, 037-112500-00.000, 037-112482-00.000, 037-112194-00.000, 037-111660-01.000, 037-

112452-00.000, 037-112272-00.000, 037-112350-00.000, 037-112488-00.000, 037-111552-00.000, 

037-112038-00.000, 037-111474-01.000, 037-112398-00.000, 037-112098-00.000, 037-112098-

00.001, 037-112398-00.001, 037-112164-00.000, 037-111546-00.000, 037-111780-00.000, 037-

111816-02.000, 037-112494-00.000, 037-111822-00.001, 037-112314-00.001, 037-111660-00.000, 

037-112170-00.000, 037-112098-00.005, 037-112098-00.004, 037-112098-00.002, 037-112098-

00.003, 037-112308-00.000, 037-112440-00.000, 037-112290-00.000, 037-111624-00.001, 037-

111624-00.002, 037-111624-00.000, 037-112746-00.000, 037-112356-00.000, 037-112536-00.000, 

037-112314-00.000, 037-111486-00.000, 037-111480-00.001, 037-111480-00.000, 037-111492-

00.000, 037-111474-00.000, 037-111492-00.001, 037-111486-00.001, 037-111828-00.000, 037-

111978-00.000, 037-111960-00.000, 037-111966-00.000, 037-111828-00.001, 037-111894-00.001, 

037-111414-00.000, 037-111852-00.001, 037-112410-00.000, 037-112734-00.000, 037-112260-

00.000, 037-112260-00.002, 037-112260-00.001, 037-112620-00.000, 037-111732-00.000, 037-

112062-00.000, 037-112200-00.000, 037-111732-00.002, 037-111732-00.007, 037-111732-00.001, 

037-111732-00.005, 037-111732-00.004, 037-111732-00.006, 037-111732-00.008, 037-111732-

00.003, 037-111720-00.000, 037-111726-00.000, 037-111456-00.000, 037-111588-00.000, 037-

112566-00.000. 

 



PC 22 0516 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance VAR-41-2022  1 of 3 
 

 

 
 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

May 16, 2022 Meeting  

 

 

4 HAWKSMOOR DRIVE 

POOL LOCATION VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  4 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-003432). 

APPLICANT:   Capital City Pools, Inc.  

REQUEST: (A) Variance to Hawksmoor zoning text section II(5)(a) to allow a 

swimming pool to be located in a side yard at 4 Hawksmoor Drive.   

ZONING:   Hawksmoor I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential 

APPLICATION: VAR-41-2022 

 

Review based on: Application materials received March 17, 2022. 

Staff report prepared by Chris Christian, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

 

This application was reviewed and tabled by the Planning Commission during their April 18th 

meeting in order to give the applicant time to gather letters of support from neighboring property 

owners. Letters collected to date are included in the meeting packet.  

 

The applicant requests a variance to Hawksmoor zoning text section II(5)(a) to allow a swimming 

pool to be located in a side yard at 4 Hawksmoor Drive.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  

The property is .73 acres in size contains a newly built single-family home and is located in the 

Hawksmoor subdivision. The original platted lots 4 & 5 were combined by the property owner 

into this single lot in 2020.    

 

III. EVALUATION 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 

notified. 

 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 



PC 22 0516 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance VAR-41-2022  2 of 3 
 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

III.  RECOMMENDATION 

Considerations and Basis for Decision 

 

(A) Variance to Hawksmoor zoning text section II(5)(a) to allow a swimming pool to be 

located in a side yard at 4 Hawksmoor Drive.   

The following should be considered in the commission’s decision: 

1. The Hawksmoor zoning text states “all swimming pools/spas shall be located in the rear 

yard within the building line of sight and shall be completely enclosed by fencing and 

screened from adjoining properties.” 

2. The applicant proposes to install a swimming pool in the side yard, therefore a variance is 

required.  

3. The proposed pool is to be located in the side yard, setback further from the public street 

than the principle structure within a code compliant fence. Additionally, the applicant 

proposes to install a 7-8 foot tall evergreen landscape hedge around the entire pool area to 

provide screening. In addition to this screening, there is an existing 7 foot tall evergreen 

landscape hedge that runs along the site frontage nearest to the pool, providing more 

screening on top of what is proposed.  

4. It does not appear that the essential character of the neighborhood would be altered if the 

variance request is granted. The applicant states that they will install arborvitae around 

the proposed pool area to provide screening for adjacent properties.  

5. The variance meets the spirit and intent of the zoning text requirement which is to ensure 

that swimming pools/spas are screened from adjacent properties and public rights-of-

way. While the applicant proposes to locate the swimming pool in a side yard, they are 

providing substantial landscape screening from adjacent properties and public rights-of-

way thereby meeting the intent of the zoning text requirement.  

6. The variance does not appear to be substantial. All other code requirements including 



PC 22 0516 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance VAR-41-2022  3 of 3 
 

setbacks from adjacent properties and pool fencing are being met. In addition, the base 

city code requirements for pools do not state that pools cannot be located in a side yard 

therefore the applicant is still meeting the base pool location zoning requirements found 

in city code.  

7. It does not appear that this problem may be solved in another manner other than granting 

the variance request.   The existing house was built in 2007. The lots within the 

Hawksmoor subdivision are small and in order to meet the setback and landscaping 

requirements the property owner used the neighboring lot that they purchased in 2020 to 

accommodate additional recreational amenities for their enjoyment. 

8. It does not appear that the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government 

services, affect the health and safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the 

proposed development, be materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to 

private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the requested variance should the Planning Commission find that 

the application has sufficient basis for approval. While the applicant proposes to install a 

swimming pool in a side yard, they are proposing to install a 7-8-foot evergreen hedge around the 

perimeter of the entire pool area which meets the intent of the zoning requirement to screen these 

areas from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way. Additionally, there is an existing 7-foot-

tall evergreen shrub row along the entire front of the lot, providing three layers of screening to 

ensure that the intent of the code requirement is substantially met. The proposed pool will be 

enclosed by a code compliant fence and is meeting all other code requirements.  

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate.   

 

Move to approve application VAR-41-2022 based on the findings in the staff report 

(conditions of approval may be added).  

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: Google Earth 

 

 



Dear Committee Members of the New Albany Planning Commission,

Please let this letter serve as a formal show of support for the variance requested by Capital City Pools,

Inc. to allow a pool in the side yard of 4 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-003482). As members of the

Hawksmoor Community, we feel the proposed pool project will provide a heightened aesthetic to a

presently unoccupied lot.

We understand the request for approval is not the normal inclination of the Committee as the

Committee feels it may set a precedent for the Hawksmoor Community. However, we, members of the

community, challenge your predisposition to state that 4 Hawksmoor Drive is the only lot conducive to

allowing a pool in the side yard. The variance request is a one-time request and has the backing all

members of the Hawksmoor Community, as signed herein.

In closing, we, the community members of Hawksmoor, feel the approval of this variance request is

necessary for the continued success and growth of our community. The City of New Albany prides itself

on inclusivity and diversity; approval of this variance request will not only prove to our community the

City’s willingness to truly hear its constituents, but to also show true diversity within the community

planning. We appreciate your time and support in this matter.

Sincerely,

Hawksmoor Community Members

Signature:

Email:
Richard J. Kolaska (May 3, 2022 16:03 EDT)
Richard J. Kolaska

12 Hawksmoor Dr

kolaska@compreim.com

https://lifestylecommunities.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAUM6uYmT4oP6zMC89fTBuqbzlAcZbey5b


Dear Committee Members of the New Albany Planning Commission,

Please let this letter serve as a formal show of support for the variance requested by Capital City Pools,

Inc. to allow a pool in the side yard of 4 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-003482). As members of the

Hawksmoor Community, we feel the proposed pool project will provide a heightened aesthetic to a

presently unoccupied lot.

We understand the request for approval is not the normal inclination of the Committee as the

Committee feels it may set a precedent for the Hawksmoor Community. However, we, members of the

community, challenge your predisposition to state that 4 Hawksmoor Drive is the only lot conducive to

allowing a pool in the side yard. The variance request is a one-time request and has the backing all

members of the Hawksmoor Community, as signed herein.

In closing, we, the community members of Hawksmoor, feel the approval of this variance request is

necessary for the continued success and growth of our community. The City of New Albany prides itself

on inclusivity and diversity; approval of this variance request will not only prove to our community the

City’s willingness to truly hear its constituents, but to also show true diversity within the community

planning. We appreciate your time and support in this matter.

Sincerely,

Hawksmoor Community Members

Signature:

Email:
Lisa Rumpke (May 3, 2022 20:57 EDT)

4 Hawksmoor Drive

lcrumpke@gmail.com

https://lifestylecommunities.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAMv2lJCQK1atTmkKdexIfVnCfdzVQ0Juu


LOT 8 - 8 Hawksmoor Drive



LOT 2 - 2 Hawksmoor Drive



LOT 17 - 17 Hawksmoor Drive



LOT 18 - 18 Hawksmoor Drive



Dear Committee Members of the New Albany Planning Commission,

Please let this letter serve as a formal show of support for the variance requested by Capital City Pools,

Inc. to allow a pool in the side yard of 4 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-003482). As members of the

Hawksmoor Community, we feel the proposed pool project will provide a heightened aesthetic to a

presently unoccupied lot.

We understand the request for approval is not the normal inclination of the Committee as the

Committee feels it may set a precedent for the Hawksmoor Community. However, we, members of the

community, challenge your predisposition to state that 4 Hawksmoor Drive is the only lot conducive to

allowing a pool in the side yard. The variance request is a one-time request and has the backing all

members of the Hawksmoor Community, as signed herein.

In closing, we, the community members of Hawksmoor, feel the approval of this variance request is

necessary for the continued success and growth of our community. The City of New Albany prides itself

on inclusivity and diversity; approval of this variance request will not only prove to our community the

City’s willingness to truly hear its constituents, but to also show true diversity within the community

planning. We appreciate your time and support in this matter.

Sincerely,

Hawksmoor Community Members

Signature:

Email:
Michele McIntire (May 3, 2022 18:36 EDT)
Michele McIntire

1 Hawksmoor Drive

Mimi@encore-living.com

https://lifestylecommunities.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAArzSgR8tFGqLuthUJI9QsDdWxKO58ARv7


Dear Committee Members of the New Albany Planning Commission,

Please let this letter serve as a formal show of support for the variance requested by Capital City Pools,

Inc. to allow a pool in the side yard of 4 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-003482). As members of the

Hawksmoor Community, we feel the proposed pool project will provide a heightened aesthetic to a

presently unoccupied lot.

We understand the request for approval is not the normal inclination of the Committee as the

Committee feels it may set a precedent for the Hawksmoor Community. However, we, members of the

community, challenge your predisposition to state that 4 Hawksmoor Drive is the only lot conducive to

allowing a pool in the side yard. The variance request is a one-time request and has the backing all

members of the Hawksmoor Community, as signed herein.

In closing, we, the community members of Hawksmoor, feel the approval of this variance request is

necessary for the continued success and growth of our community. The City of New Albany prides itself

on inclusivity and diversity; approval of this variance request will not only prove to our community the

City’s willingness to truly hear its constituents, but to also show true diversity within the community

planning. We appreciate your time and support in this matter.

Sincerely,

Hawksmoor Community Members

Signature:

Email:
Andrew Rumpke (May 3, 2022 20:57 EDT)

4 Hawksmoor Drive

andrew.rumpke@rumpke.com

https://lifestylecommunities.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAANm1uyS5M6pm6rN-FADBdXzcbqR-wap4e


����������		���
���������	����������������������������������

���������	�	������		���������������������������������	����	������������������	����������	�����	��������

�����	������������������	��������������� �!��"������������#���$�%%%&''( )%*���������������	��

!��"�������������	����������	��������������������+��	���������������������	��������	��	���	���

������	����������������	�

,��������	����	���������	������������������	�	�����������������	������	��������		������	��

�����		���������	�������	�����������	����	���!��"�������������	���!����������������������	��

�������	����������������������������	����	���	�	��	��	� �!��"���������������	����������	�����������	�

�������������������	��������������-������������������	���������&	����������	���������	������"�������

����������	���!��"�������������	��������������������

����������������	����������	������������!��"�����������	��������������	�������������������	���

�������������	������	����������������������	���������������	���-�����	�����������������������	���

������������	�������������	�.������������	�������������������	��������	������������	�������������	��	��

��	�/��������������	��	�����������	������	�	���	�����	�	������������	�����������	����	����	����������	�

����������,����������	�������	��������������	����	������		���

0���������

!��"�������������	��
������

123456789:

;<52=:

>?@ABCDEFE>GHH?IEJ>BKELMENONNEPQRNLESTUV

PL

W?@ABCDXWGHH?IWYZKBAGG[@GW



����������		���
���������	����������������������������������

���������	�	������		���������������������������������	����	������������������	����������	�����	��������

�����	������������������	��������������� �!��"������������#���$�%%%&''( )%*���������������	��

!��"�������������	����������	��������������������+��	���������������������	��������	��	���	���

������	����������������	�

,��������	����	���������	������������������	�	�����������������	������	��������		������	��

�����		���������	�������	�����������	����	���!��"�������������	���!����������������������	��

�������	����������������������������	����	���	�	��	��	� �!��"���������������	����������	�����������	�

�������������������	��������������-������������������	���������&	����������	���������	������"�������

����������	���!��"�������������	��������������������

����������������	����������	������������!��"�����������	��������������	�������������������	���

�������������	������	����������������������	���������������	���-�����	�����������������������	���

������������	�������������	�.������������	�������������������	��������	������������	�������������	��	��

��	�/��������������	��	�����������	������	�	���	�����	�	������������	�����������	����	����	����������	�

����������,����������	�������	��������������	����	������		���

0���������

!��"�������������	��
������

123456789:

;<52=:

>?@ABCDEFBGBHIDJF?KLDBMLNNBO>?PBQRBSTSSBUVWXVBYZ[\
]̂_̀abcdeafaghciêjkcalkmm

UTBn?oAEpqq@BZ@LrD

pNDEFpstup?LNvwqp



����������		���
���������	����������������������������������

���������	�	������		���������������������������������	����	������������������	����������	�����	��������

�����	������������������	��������������� �!��"������������#���$�%%%&''( )%*���������������	��

!��"�������������	����������	��������������������+��	���������������������	��������	��	���	���

������	����������������	�

,��������	����	���������	������������������	�	�����������������	������	��������		������	��

�����		���������	�������	�����������	����	���!��"�������������	���!����������������������	��

�������	����������������������������	����	���	�	��	��	� �!��"���������������	����������	�����������	�

�������������������	��������������-������������������	���������&	����������	���������	������"�������

����������	���!��"�������������	��������������������

����������������	����������	������������!��"�����������	��������������	�������������������	���

�������������	������	����������������������	���������������	���-�����	�����������������������	���

������������	�������������	�.������������	�������������������	��������	������������	�������������	��	��

��	�/��������������	��	�����������	������	�	���	�����	�	������������	�����������	����	����	����������	�

����������,����������	�������	��������������	����	������		���

0���������

!��"�������������	��
������

123456789:

;<52=:

>?@ABCD@@EFBGH?IBJKBLMLLBNOPQMBRCST

UBV?FWXYEE@BC@ZZ

>?@A[D@@EF\]Y?̂_Z̀EY



����������		���
���������	����������������������������������

���������	�	������		���������������������������������	����	������������������	����������	�����	��������

�����	������������������	��������������� �!��"������������#���$�%%%&''( )%*���������������	��

!��"�������������	����������	��������������������+��	���������������������	��������	��	���	���

������	����������������	�

,��������	����	���������	������������������	�	�����������������	������	��������		������	��

�����		���������	�������	�����������	����	���!��"�������������	���!����������������������	��

�������	����������������������������	����	���	�	��	��	� �!��"���������������	����������	�����������	�

�������������������	��������������-������������������	���������&	����������	���������	������"�������

����������	���!��"�������������	��������������������

����������������	����������	������������!��"�����������	��������������	�������������������	���

�������������	������	����������������������	���������������	���-�����	�����������������������	���

������������	�������������	�.������������	�������������������	��������	������������	�������������	��	��

��	�/��������������	��	�����������	������	�	���	�����	�	������������	�����������	����	����	����������	�

����������,����������	�������	��������������	����	������		���

0���������

!��"�������������	��
������

123456789:

;<52=:

>?@ABCDEFEGHII?JEKGBLEMNEOPOOEQRSTUEVWXY
Z[\]̂_̀abacdee[f

QREgChJ?hijHhEkHlIj

GHII?JGFmn?JHIjAHo@H>



LOT 6 - 6 Hawksmoor Drive

























PC 22 0516 7230 Southfield Accessory Structure Variances VAR-50-2022  1 of 5 
 

 

 
 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

May 16, 2022 Meeting 

 

 

7230 SOUTHFIELD DRIVE 

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE VARIANCES 

 

 

LOCATION:  7230 Southfield Drive (PID: 222-004784). 

APPLICANT:   Guzzo & Garner Custom Builders   

(A) Variance to CO 1165.04(a)(1) to allow an accessory structure to be 

1,110 sq. ft. in size where code allows a maximum area of 800 sq. ft. 

based on the size of the lot.  

(B) Variance to CO 1165.04(a)(2)(E) to allow an accessory structure to 

be located 15+/- feet from the rear property line where the code 

requires a 30-foot setback.  

ZONING:   West Nine I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential 

APPLICATION: VAR-50-2022 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on April 21, 2022 

Staff report prepared by Chris Christian, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

 

This application was reviewed and tabled by the Planning Commission during their May 2nd 

meeting in order to give the applicant time to gather letters of support from neighboring property 

owners. Letters collected to date are included in the meeting packet.  

 

The applicant requests the following variances associated with the construction of a new 

accessory structure on the property.  

 

(A) CO 1165.04(a)(1) to allow an accessory structure to be 1,110 sq. ft. in size where code 

allows a maximum area of 800 sq. ft. based on the size of the lot.  

(B) CO 1165.04(a)(2)(E) to allow an accessory structure to be located 15+/- feet from the 

rear property line where the code requires a 30-foot setback.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  

The property is .50 acres in size and contains a single-family home as well as a swimming pool. 

The lot is located in the Ebrington subdivision. The applicant also owns the adjacent property to 

the west and has completed a lot line adjustment application which differs from how the lot 

lines are shown on the Franklin County Auditor’s website at the time of writing this staff 

report. The new property lines are reflected correctly in the packet materials.    

 

III. EVALUATION 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 

notified. 

 

Criteria 



PC 22 0516 7230 Southfield Accessory Structure Variances VAR-50-2022  2 of 5 
 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

III.  RECOMMENDATION 

Considerations and Basis for Decision 

 

(A) CO 1165.04(a)(1) to allow an accessory structure to be 1,110- sq. ft. in size where code 

allows a maximum area of 800 sq. ft. based on the size of the lot.  

(B) CO 1165.04(a)(2)(E) to allow an accessory structure to be located 15+/- feet from the 

rear property line where the code requires a 30-foot setback.  

The following should be considered in the commission’s decision: 

1. Lots 31 and 32 in the Ebrington subdivision are under the common ownership. There is an 

existing house and swimming pool on lot 32. The applicant submitted a permit 

application to construct the subject accessory structure on lot 31. During the permit 

review process, staff identified the code deviations and a lot line adjustment application 

was completed. The applicant is requesting the variances in order to align the accessory 

structure with the existing pool on the property.  

2. C.O. 1165.04(a)(1) permits different sizes of accessory structures based on the size of the 



PC 22 0516 7230 Southfield Accessory Structure Variances VAR-50-2022  3 of 5 
 

lot they are located on.  

o The current code allows for an additional 400 square feet of space for every acre, 

starting at a maximum of 800 sq. ft. for lots less than one acre.  

o Lot 32 is .754 acres in size. In sum the two adjacent properties, under common 

ownership, are a total of 1 acre in size. If the two lots were combined, a variance 

would not be required. 

o However, the properties cannot be combined because it would create other non-

conformities on the lot. Because of that, in order to construct a 1,110 sq. ft. accessory 

structure, a variance is required.  

3. C.O. 1165.04(a)(2)(e) states that accessory structures must be setback 30 feet from a rear 

property line and the applicant requests a variance to allow this structure to be located 15 

feet away.  

4. There are special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to the land that justify 

the variance requests given the ownership and location of lots 31 and 32 in relation to the 

roundabout. The property owner seeks to construct an accessory structure next to the pool 

either on one or both properties but a variance is needed due to the technical definitions 

of rear and side yards.  

5. The accessory structure cannot be located on its own lot per C.O. 1131.02 as an accessory 

structure cannot exist without a primary structure. For this reason, a lot line combination 

or adjustment is required. However, both options result in a variance(s) being required. 

For these reasons, it does not appear that the problem may be solved in another manner 

other than granting a variance request.  

i. If the lots are combined: 

o Due to the lot location on a roundabout, it would have three frontages.  

a. The proposed accessory structure would be located in a front yard. 

b. The new combined lot would have a new rear yard as defined by city 

code, making the current side lot line a rear lot line. As stated, there 

is an existing home on the lot and it would be encroaching into the 

required rear yard setback.  

o A variance to C.O. 1165.04(a)(2)(A) to allow an accessory structure to be 

located in the front yard would be necessary.  

o A variance to the zoning text would be necessary to allow an existing home 

to be located in the 30-foot rear yard setback.  

ii. The lot line is adjusted (current scenario): 

o The lot that the accessory structure is located on is only .754 acres in size 

therefore a 800 sq. ft. accessory structure is permitted to be developed   

o As defined by city code, the rear lot line remains as currently identified and 

the proposed accessory structure is located within the rear yard setback.  

o A variance to CO 1165.04(a)(1) is needed to allow the accessory structure to 

be 1,110 sq. ft. in size to be developed.  

o A variance to C.O. 1165.04(a)(2)(E) is needed to allow the accessory 

structure to be located 15 feet from the rear property line.  

iii.  In order to avoid creating non-conformities with the existing home and pool and 

encourage good design, the applicant submitted a lot line adjustment application 

rather than a lot line combination as recommended by city staff.  

6. It does not appear that the essential character of the neighborhood would be altered if the 

variance is granted. The rear lot line of lot 32 runs along the side lot line of lot 30. There is 

an existing accessory structure on lot 30 that is located only 10 feet away from this same 

property line, which is closer than what is being proposed for the subject property. In order 

to provide screening and buffer lot 30, staff recommends that landscaping be added along 

the rear lot line where the encroachment into the setback is proposed, subject to staff 

approval.  

7. While the applicant needs variances to construct the desired accessory structure, the plan 

accomplishes good design which is a hallmark of residential development in New Albany 

and will not alter the character of the surrounding area. City code regulations, nor zoning 



PC 22 0516 7230 Southfield Accessory Structure Variances VAR-50-2022  4 of 5 
 

texts, can contemplate every development scenario that may occur within a subdivision 

and a literal interpretation of these provisions deprives the applicant of rights commonly 

enjoyed by other residentially zoned and used properties in the city.   

8. The Ebrington subdivision contains large and small lots where large estate homes as well 

as cluster development is desired. These two lots are smaller, cluster lots therefore having 

larger structures located closer to property lines is more appropriate as it is consistent 

with the desired development pattern for this section of Ebrington. There are very limited 

instances where this type of development scenario may occur however the applicant has 

taken these unique site characteristics into account as part of development of the 

accessory structure to maintain the character of the Ebrington subdivision. Additionally, 

the proposed site layout achieves an appropriate design as it aligns with the existing pool 

on the site and it is located an appropriate distance from the primary structure.   

9. It does not appear that the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government 

services, affect the health and safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the 

proposed development, be materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to 

private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the requested variance should the Planning Commission find that 

the application has sufficient basis for approval. While variances are proposed, a variance(s) will 

always be necessary to build a detached accessory structure at this site due to a literal 

interpretation of the zoning code, the common ownership and location of lots 31 and 32 in 

relation to the roundabout and the definition of side, rear and front yards found in city code. 

Taking all of these items into consideration, the applicant followed a permitting path as 

recommended by city staff that preserves the essential character of the Ebrington subdivision and 

maintains good design which is a hallmark of all residential development in New Albany. Plus, 

additional landscaping will provide a buffer for the neighboring property owner where the 

setback encroachment is proposed.   

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate.   

 

Move to approve application VAR-50-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

following condition of approval (conditions of approval may be added).  

 

1. Landscaping must be added along the rear property line where setback encroachment is 

proposed, subject to staff approval.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 22 0516 7230 Southfield Accessory Structure Variances VAR-50-2022  5 of 5 
 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 









 
 





PROPOSED
POOL HOUSE

PROPOSEDDDE
POOL HOUSEOU

NOTE:
BLUE LINE REPRESENTS

NEW 15' SETBACK PER CITY
CONVERSATION

NOTE:
RED LINE REPRESENTS NEW

PROPERTY LINE COORDINATED
BY SURVEY TEAM

SP.1Scale : 1" = 20' - 0" 0' 20' 40'



ඉකඋඐඑගඍඋගඝකඉඔ
ඛඡඕඕඍගකඡ

ඏකඍඍඖ
ඟඉඔඔ

ඛඡඕඕඍගකඡ

ගඑඖඉඔ
ඏඉකඉඏඍ

ඖග ඉඔඑඋඉඊඔඍ

කඛඍඌ
ඔ

ඐඝඛඍ

ඍචඑඛගඑඖඏ
කඍඛඑඌඍඖඋඍ

ඍචඑඛගඑඖඏ
ඔ

උඖගඍචගඝඉඔ 
ඔඉඖ


	22 0317 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance SENT TO PC.pdf
	PC 22 0418 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance VAR-41-2022.pdf
	22 0317 4 Hawksmoor Pool Location Variance Submittal.pdf




